

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Eighty-eighth and Eighty-ninth  
Legislatures

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

From April 24, 1937 to April 21, 1939

AND

MISCELLANEOUS STATE PAPERS

---

Published by the Secretary of State, in conjunction  
with the Revisor of Statutes in accordance with the  
Resolves of the Legislature approved June 28, 1820,  
March 18, 1840, March 16, 1842 and Acts approved  
August 6, 1930 and April 2, 1931.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1939

---

---

PUBLIC LAWS

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Eighty-ninth Legislature

1939

---

---

**CHAP. 107**

section 14 of chapter 41 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'The person who shall file said certificate shall pay annually to the commissioner of agriculture a registration fee as follows: \$10 each for the nitrogen and the phosphoric acid and \$5 each for the potash **and the magnesium** contained, or said to be contained in the fertilizer, this fee to be assessed on any brand offered for sale, distribution or transportation in the state.'

Approved March 25, 1939.

---

## Chapter 106

### AN ACT Relating to State Aid to Agricultural Societies.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1.** R. S., c. 39, § 25, amended. Wherever in section 25 of chapter 39 of the revised statutes, the word "livestock" appears, it shall be interpreted to mean horses, cattle, sheep, and swine.

**Sec. 2.** Poultry included in premium offered by fair. Section 25 of chapter 39 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended by adding after the word "livestock" in the third sentence thereof the word ", poultry".

Approved March 25, 1939.

---

## Chapter 107

### AN ACT Relating to the Issuance of Liquor Licenses.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

P. L., 1933, c. 268, § 15, amended. Section 15 of chapter 268 of the public laws of 1933, as amended by section 1 of chapter 235 of the public laws of 1937, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'**Sec. 15.** Persons to whom licenses shall not be granted. No license shall be issued to any natural person unless ~~he shall~~ **such person is** at least 21 years of age, and ~~shall have been~~ **is** a citizen of the United States, and of this state; ~~for a period of at least 2 years;~~ provided, however, that ~~any person holding a license at the time of the effective date of this act and who has received his first citizenship papers shall be entitled to a license; and provided further, that in case such person is denied~~

~~his final citizenship papers, his license shall be revoked.~~ a part-time or 6 months' license, as authorized by law, may be issued to any natural person who is at least 21 years of age and is a citizen of the United States. No license shall be issued to a partnership or to an association unless all persons having an interest therein ~~shall be~~ are at least 21 years of age, and are citizens of the United States, and ~~shall have been citizens~~ of this state; ~~for at least 2 years.~~ provided, however, that a part-time or 6 months' license, as authorized by law, may be issued to a partnership or an association if all persons having an interest therein are at least 21 years of age and are citizens of the United States. No license shall be issued to any corporation, unless it shall be incorporated under the laws of Maine, or authorized to transact business within the state of Maine. No person, firm or corporation, having had his or its license under this act revoked for cause shall be granted a license until the expiration of 5 years from the date of such revocation. No license under this act shall be issued to any person, firm, or corporation, who within 5 years next prior to his or its application therefor has been convicted of violating any of the laws of the state of Maine or of the United States of America with respect to the manufacture, transportation, possession or sale of intoxicating liquors.

All applicants for license shall be required to file applications in such form as the commission shall require, and every application shall disclose the complete and entire ownership in the establishment for which a license is requested. All questions required to be answered in applications for licenses shall be sworn to, and intentional, untruthful answers shall constitute the crime of perjury. All applications must be signed and sworn to by a natural person who has full knowledge of the facts involved.

Every applicant for an original license, or for a renewal of license, shall remit to the commission a filing fee of \$10.'

Approved March 25, 1939.

---

---

## Chapter 108

### AN ACT Relating to Automobiles Stopping Upon Signal of Officer.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 38, additional. Chapter 38 of the revised statutes, as revised, is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be numbered 46-D and to read as follows:

'Sec. 46-D. Vehicles required to stop upon signal. It shall be unlawful for the operator of any motor vehicle to fail or refuse to stop any such